

# RESTORATION OPPORTUNITIES ATLAS: **STATE REPORTS**



India.restorationatlas.org

### **CONTENTS**

- 4 Andhra Pradesh 36 Meghalaya
- 6 Arunachal Pradesh
- 8 Assam
- 10 Bihar
- 12 Chhattisgarh
- 14 Goa
- 16 Gujarat
- 18 Haryana
- 20 Himachal Pradesh
- 22 Jammu and Kashmir
- 24 Jharkhand
- 26 Karnataka
- 28 Kerala
- 30 Madhya Pradesh
- 32 Maharashtra
- 34 Manipur

- 38 Mizoram
- 40 Nagaland
- 42 Odisha
- 44 Punjab
- 46 Rajasthan
- 48 Sikkim
- 50 Tamil Nadu
- 52 Telangana
- 54 Tripura
- 56 Uttar Pradesh
- 58 Uttarakhand
- 60 West Bengal



#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 16 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	3.49
Not available for land cultivation	3.44
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.21
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.16
Culturable wasteland	0.39
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.79
Current Fallow	1.08
Net Sown	6.44

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 3.73 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.19
Moderate Dense Forest	1.41
Open Forest	1.21



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 7.75 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.29
Wide-scale Restoration	1.64
Mosaic Restoration	5.81



#### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Andhra Pradesh has the potential to sequester between 157.73 to 252.80 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	7.65	
Widescale Restoration	93.97	
Mosaic Restoration	56.11 - 151.18	
Total	157.73 - 252.80	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Andhra Pradesh's protected areas.

### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Andhra Pradesh has four projects that involve at least six types of interventions.



These interventions cover 7,060 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Andhra Pradesh:

• Between 2011-2017, Andhra Pradesh recorded 12,929 incidents of fires.

- Between 2011-2017, Andhra Pradesh diverted nearly 49,063.9968 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 1.74 % of Andhra Pradesh's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 4 conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Andhra Pradesh in 2015. These conflicts are related to land acquisition for development (1), tenure and resource rights (1) and others (2).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

5 districts in Andhra Pradesh are partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 24 percent of Andhra Pradesh's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 143,8000 households. The potential for CFR is Andhra Pradesh is 2.49 Mha.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 669.130.3 crore was allocated to Andhra Pradesh under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	638.18
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	540.17
Thirteenth Finance Commission	59.65
NABARD	95.46
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	35.69
Allocations under MGNREGA	5,357.83
State's share in CAF	3,668.39

In 2018, Andhra Pradesh's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 3,668.39 crore.

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total geographic area: 8.37 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	6.73
Not available for land cultivation	0.06
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.01
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.04
Culturable wasteland	0.06
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.07
Current Fallow	0.04
Net Sown	0.23

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 5.14 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	2.07
Moderate Dense Forest	3.09
Open Forest	1.52



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 5.74 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	5.04
Wide-scale Restoration	0.63
Mosaic Restoration	0.07



Map Not to Scale

### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Arunachal Pradesh has the potential to sequester between 138.10 to 139.45 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	99.77	
Widescale Restoration	37.68	
Mosaic Restoration	0.64-2.00	
Total	138.10 - 139.45	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Arunachal Pradesh's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Arunachal Pradesh has 2 projects that involve at least five types of interventions.



These interventions cover 100 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### **RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER**



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Arunachal Pradesh:

- Between 2011-2017, Andhra Pradesh recorded 3,465 incidents of fires.
- Between 2011-2017, Arunachal Pradesh diverted nearly 317,281.774 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 4.73 % of Arunachal Pradesh's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 1 conflict between state agencies and communities were reported in Arunachal Pradesh in 2015. The conflict is related to acquisition for development.
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Arunachal Pradesh partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 2 percent of Arunachal Pradesh's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 33,048 households. The potential for CFR in Arunachal is 1.53 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 62,027.1 crore was allocated to Arunachal Pradesh under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	193.10
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	112.21
Thirteenth Finance Commission	257.05
NABARD	2.03
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	0.00
Allocations under MGNREGA	55.88
State's share in CAF	2,452.23

In 2018, Arunachal Pradesh's share of the Compensatory

# ASSAM

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 7.84 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	1.85
Not available for land cultivation	2.46
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.17
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.22
Culturable wasteland	0.14
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.09
Current Fallow	0.09
Net Sown	2.82

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 2.68 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.28
Moderate Dense Forest	1.02
Open Forest	1.51



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 3.60 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	1.72
Wide-scale Restoration	0.53
Mosaic Restoration	1.35



Map Not to Scale

### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Assam has the potential to sequester between 63.41 to 75.65 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)
Protection	33.38
Widescale Restoration	23.32
Mosaic Restoration	6.71 - 18.95
Total	63.41 - 75.65
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.	

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Assam's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Assam has 5 projects that involve at least five types of interventions.



These interventions cover 1886 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Assam:

• Between 2011-2017, Assam recorded 12,946 incidents of fires.

- Between 2011-2017, Assam diverted nearly 4,187.214 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 0.14% of Assam's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 1 conflict between state agencies and communities was reported in Assam. The conflict is related to land acquisition for development (1).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Assam partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 2 percent of Assam's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 294,834 households. The potential for CFR in Assam is 0.22 Mha.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 131,557.8 crore was allocated to Assam under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)	
Budgetary Allocation	265.36	
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	28.06	
Thirteenth Finance Commission	17.15	
NABARD	3.08	
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	52.61	
Allocations under MGNREGA	949.32	
State's share in CAF	757.65	

In 2018, Assam's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 757.65 crore.

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 9.42 MH**a** 

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	0.62
Not available for land cultivation	2.14
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.02
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.25
Culturable wasteland	0.05
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.12
Current Fallow	0.91
Net Sown	5.25

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 0.69 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.03
Moderate Dense Forest	0.33
Open Forest	0.37



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 0.56 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.03
Wide-scale Restoration	0.20
Mosaic Restoration	0.33



### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Bihar has the potential to sequester between 15.94 to 18.66 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)
Protection	1.05
Widescale Restoration	11.63
Mosaic Restoration	3.26 - 5.98
Total	15.94 - 18.66
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.	

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Bihar's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Bihar has 2 projects that involve at least five types of interventions.



These interventions have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Bihar:

• Between 2011-2017, Bihar recorded 1,328 incidents of fires.

- Between 2011-2017, Bihar diverted nearly 6836.98 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 1% of Bihar's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, no conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Bihar.
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Bihar partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 71 percent of Bihar's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 211,674 households. The potential for CFR in Bihar is 0.40 Mha.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 351,524.1 crore was allocated to Bihar under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	91.73
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	43.81
Thirteenth Finance Commission	- 33.20
NABARD	18.77
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	0.00
Allocations under MGNREGA	3,394.13
State's share in CAF	712.37

In 2018, Bihar's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 712.37 crore.

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 13.52 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	6.33
Not available for land cultivation	1.03
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.88
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.001
Culturable wasteland	0.35
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.25
Current Fallow	0.26
Net Sown	4.69

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 5.98 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.71
Moderate Dense Forest	3.22
Open Forest	1.63



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 7.37 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.28
Wide-scale Restoration	4.00
Mosaic Restoration	3.08



#### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Chhattisgarh has the potential to sequester between 210.68 to 248.03 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Map Not to Scale

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)
Protection	7.34
Widescale Restoration	176.49
Mosaic Restoration	26.85 - 64.20
Total	210.68 - 248.03
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.	

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Chhattisgarh's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Chhattisgarh has 12 projects that involve at least six types of interventions.



These interventions cover 7,259 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Chhattisgarh:

- Between 2011-2017, Chhattisgarh recorded 15,523 incidents of fires.
- Between 2011-2017, Chhattisgarh diverted nearly 38,815.4611 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 2% of Chhattisgarh's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 23 conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Chhattisgarh in 1,978. These

conflicts are related to compensatory afforestation (5), land acquisition for development (10), tenure and resource rights (3) and others (5).

• Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

13 districts in Chhattisgarh are fully covered and 6 districts are partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 55 percent of Chhattisgarh's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 1,117,000 households. The potential for CFR in Chhattisgarh is 2.00 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 489,490.8 crore was allocated to Chhattisgarh under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	276.08
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	516.92
Thirteenth Finance Commission	137.88
NABARD	71.03
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	0.00
Allocations under MGNREGA	3,893.00
State's share in CAF	7,288.17

In 2018, Chhattisgarh's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 7,288.17 crore.

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 0.37 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	0.13
Not available for land cultivation	0.04
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.001
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.001
Culturable wasteland	0.53
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.00
Current Fallow	0.15
Net Sown	0.13

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 0.12 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.05
Moderate Dense Forest	0.06
Open Forest	0.11



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 0.11 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.06
Wide-scale Restoration	0.03
Mosaic Restoration	0.02



# CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL

Legend

Map Not to Scale

Protection

Wide-scale Restoration

Mosaic Restoration

Excluded areas

Goa has the potential to sequester between 8.27 to 8.41 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	7.34	
Widescale Restoration	0.88	
Mosaic Restoration	0.05 - 0.19	
Total	8.27 - 8.41	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Goa's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Goa has three projects that involve at least three types of interventions.



These interventions cover 567 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Goa:

- Between 2011-2017, Goa recorded 52 incidents of fires.
- Between 2011-2017, Goa diverted nearly 1,893 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 0.12 % of Goa's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 1 conflict between state agencies and communities

were reported in Goa. The conflict is related to compensatory land acquisition for development (1).

• Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Goa partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 8.16 percent of Goa's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 336 households. The potential for CFR in Goa is 0.08 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

There is limited data available on fund flows to Goa for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	NA
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	NA
Thirteenth Finance Commission	NA
NABARD	NA
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	NA
Allocations under MGNREGA	NA
State's share in CAF	400.79

In 2018, Goa's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 400.79 crore.

# **GUJARAT**

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 19.60 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	1.83
Not available for land cultivation	3.72
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.85
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.004
Culturable wasteland	1.96
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.01
Current Fallow	0.38
Net Sown	10.30

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 2.16 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.04
Moderate Dense Forest	0.52
Open Forest	0.92



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 6.34 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.00
Wide-scale Restoration	0.76
Mosaic Restoration	5.58



#### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Gujarat has the potential to sequester between 137.98 to 225.70 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	0.00	
Widescale Restoration	52.37	
Mosaic Restoration	85.61 - 173.33	
Total	137.98 - 225.70	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Gujarat's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Gujarat has five projects that involve at least eight types of interventions.



These interventions cover 567 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Gujarat:

• Between 2011-2017, Gujarat recorded 1,453 incidents of fires.

- Between 2011-2017, Gujarat diverted nearly 65,993.135 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 0.13 % of Gujarat's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 3 conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Gujarat in 2016. These conflicts are related to land acquisition for development (1), tenure and resource rights (2) and other 1
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

4 districts in Gujarat are fully covered and 7 districts are partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 19 percent of Gujarat's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 417,032 households. The potential for CFR in Gujarat is 4.47 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 262,901.3 crore was allocated to Gujarat under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	844.59
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	151.71
Thirteenth Finance Commission	23.78
NABARD	55.88
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	560.76
Allocations under MGNREGA	992.30
State's share in CAF	2011.54

In 2018, Gujarat's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 2011.54 crore.

# HARYANA

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 4.42 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	0.04
Not available for land cultivation	0.66
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.03
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.01
Culturable wasteland	0.18
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.02
Current Fallow	0.10
Net Sown	3.49

### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 0.15 Mha

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.002
Moderate Dense Forest	0.05
Open Forest	0.11



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 1.08 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.00
Wide-scale Restoration	0.06
Mosaic Restoration	1.02



### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Haryana has the potential to sequester between 17.13 to 33.96 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	0.08	
Widescale Restoration	3.18	
Mosaic Restoration	13.87 - 30.70	
Total	17.13 - 33.96	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Haryana's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Haryana has four projects that involve at least four types of interventions.



These interventions cover 81136 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Haryana:

• Between 2011-2017, Haryana recorded 291 incidents of fires.

- Between 2011-2017, Haryana diverted nearly 13,745.04 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 9 % of Haryana's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 1 conflict between state agencies and communities were reported in Haryana. The conflict is related to tenure and resource rights (1).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Bihar partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996Nearly 26 percent of Haryana's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 66,036 households. The potential for CFR in Haryana is 0.02 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 68,933.6 crore was allocated to Haryana under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	124.69
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	74.95
Thirteenth Finance Commission	9.90
NABARD	0.33
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	2.60
Allocations under MGNREGA	476.87
State's share in CAF	1,632.17

In 2018, Haryana's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 1,632.17 crore.

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 5.57 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	1.13
Not available for land cultivation	1.13
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.15
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.06
Culturable wasteland	0.12
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.02
Current Fallow	0.54
Net Sown	0.55

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 3.70 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.31
Moderate Dense Forest	0.67
Open Forest	0.52



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 1.58 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.52
Wide-scale Restoration	0.63
Mosaic Restoration	0.43



Wide-scale Restoration
Mosaic Restoration
Excluded areas

Map Not to Scale

### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Himachal Pradesh has the potential to sequester between 53.42 to 63.57 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	18.10	
Widescale Restoration	32.23	
Mosaic Restoration	3.09 - 13.24	
Total	53.42 - 63.57	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Himachal Pradesh's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Himachal Pradesh has 9 projects that involve at least seven types of interventions.



These interventions cover 370 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Gujarat:

• Between 2011-2017, Himachal Pradesh recorded 712 incidents of fires.

- Between 2011-2017, Himachal Pradesh diverted nearly 14,907.369 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 1 percent of Himachal Pradesh's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 3 conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Himachal Pradesh in 2015. These conflicts are related to land acquisition for development (2) and tenure and resource rights (1).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

2 districts in Himachal Pradesh are fully covered and 1 district is partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 5.5 percent of Himachal Pradesh's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 263024 households. The potential for CFR in Himachal Pradesh is 1.12 MHa.

### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 186,853 crore was allocated to Himachal Pradesh under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	170.87
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	258.61
Thirteenth Finance Commission	-3.75
NABARD	6.45
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	391.92
Allocations under MGNREGA	1036.93
State's share in CAF	2710.98

In 2018, Himachal Pradesh's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 2,710.98 crore.

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 22.22 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	2.25
Not available for land cultivation	0.57
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.11
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.07
Culturable wasteland	0.13
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.02
Current Fallow	0.11
Net Sown	0.74

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 2.02 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.41
Moderate Dense Forest	0.85
Open Forest	1.11



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 2.48 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.60
Wide-scale Restoration	1.04
Mosaic Restoration	0.84



### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Jammu and Kashmir has the potential to sequester between 90.69 to 104.91 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	18.95	
Widescale Restoration	59.64	
Mosaic Restoration	12.10 - 26.32	
Total	90.69 - 104.91	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Jammu and Kashmir's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Jammu and Kashmir has three projects that involves at least three types of interventions.



These interventions cover 40 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Jammu and Kashmir:

• Between 2011-2017, Jammu and Kashmir recorded 574 incidents of fires.

- Between 2011-2017, Jammu and Kashmir's data for forest land diverted is not available.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 1 conflict between state agencies and communities was reported in Jammu and Kashmir in 2006. The conflict is related to tenure and resource rights (1).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Jammu and Kashmir partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 2 percent of Jammu and Kashmir's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 429,796 households. The potential for CFR in Jammu and Kashmir is 0.65 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 81,467.1 crore was allocated to Jammu and Kashmir under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	112.29
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	75.78
Thirteenth Finance Commission	63.75
NABARD	0.51
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	00.00
Allocations under MGNREGA	562.33
State's share in CAF	1,554.61

In 2018, Jammu and Kashmir's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 1,554.61 crore.

## **JHARKHAND**

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 7.97 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	2.23
Not available for land cultivation	1.27
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.11
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.09
Culturable wasteland	0.35
Fallow land other than current fallow	1.06
Current Fallow	1.45
Net Sown	1.38

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 2.36 Mha

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.25
Moderate Dense Forest	0.96
Open Forest	1.12



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 3.83 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.02
Wide-scale Restoration	1.90
Mosaic Restoration	1.91



Map Not to Scale

#### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Jharkhand has the potential to sequester between 92.63 to 108.80 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	0.57	
Widescale Restoration	74.33	
Mosaic Restoration	17.73 - 33.90	
Total	92.63 - 108.80	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Jharkhand's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Jharkhand has nine projects that involves at least seven types of interventions.



These interventions cover 3,343 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### **RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER**



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Jharkhand:

• Between 2011-2017, Jharkhand recorded 3585 incidents of fires.

- Between 2011-2017, Jharkhand diverted nearly 27913.984 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 1.18% of Jharkhand's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 11 conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Jharkhand in 2015. These conflicts are related to compensatory afforestation (7), and tenure and resource rights (4).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

13 districts in Jharkhand are fully covered and 3 districts are partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 73 percent of Jharkhand's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 4,29,796 households. The potential for CFR in Jharkhand is 1.88 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 496,722.5 crore was allocated to Jharkhand under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	147.49
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	430.96
Thirteenth Finance Commission	59.65
NABARD	65.76
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	00.00
Allocations under MGNREGA	4,263.37
State's share in CAF	5,193.59

In 2018, Jharkhand's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 5,193.59 crore.

## **KARNATAKA**

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 19.79 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	3.07
Not available for land cultivation	2.23
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.91
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.28
Culturable wasteland	0.41
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.53
Current Fallow	1.7
Net Sown	9.92

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 3.82 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.45
Moderate Dense Forest	2.04
Open Forest	1.26



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 8.69 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.64
Wide-scale Restoration	1.09
Mosaic Restoration	6.96





#### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Karnataka has the potential to sequester between 137.36 to 201.68 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	13.62	
Widescale Restoration	57.66	
Mosaic Restoration	66.08 - 130.40	
Total	137.36 - 201.68	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Karnataka's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Karnataka has 4 projects that involve at least eight types of interventions.



These interventions cover 1,833,360 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Karnataka:

- Between 2011-2017, Karnataka recorded 3,585 incidents of fires.
- Between 2011-2017, Karnataka diverted nearly 27,913.984 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 1.18% of Karnataka's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 3 onflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Karnataka in 2015. These conflicts are related to land acquisition for development (2) and tenure and resource rights (1).

• Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Karnataka partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 21 percent of Karnataka's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 272,805 households. The potential for CFR in Karnataka s 2.53 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 593,676.8 crore was allocated to Karnataka under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	1,352.57
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	184.79
Thirteenth Finance Commission	72.55
NABARD	144.71
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	205.41
Allocations under MGNREGA	3,976.73
State's share in CAF	1,982.15

In 2018, Karnataka's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 1,982.15 crore.

# **KERALA**

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 3.88 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	1.08
Not available for land cultivation	0.53
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.003
Culturable wasteland	0.09
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.06
Current Fallow	0.07
Net Sown	2.05

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 1.13 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.16
Moderate Dense Forest	0.94
Open Forest	0.92



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 0.66 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.41
Wide-scale Restoration	0.15
Mosaic Restoration	0.10



### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Kerala has the potential to sequester between 13.03 to 16.90 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	7.52	
Widescale Restoration	5.19	
Mosaic Restoration	0.32 - 4.19	
Total	13.03 - 16.90	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Kerala's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Kerala has 4 projects that involve at least five types of interventions.



These interventions cover 11,000 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Kerala:

- Between 2011-2017, Kerala recorded 1,157 incidents of fires.
- Between 2011-2017, Kerala diverted nearly 10406.517 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 1.74 % of Kerala's total forest area.area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 3 conflicts between state agencies and communities were

reported in Kerala in 1,988. These conflicts are related to land acquisition for development (1) and tenure and resource rights (2).

• Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Kerala partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 18 percent of Kerala's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 78,501 households. The potential for CFR in Kerala is 0.90 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 544,843.5 crore was allocated to Kerala under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	97.45
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	4.54
Thirteenth Finance Commission	47.78
NABARD	42.81
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	0.00
Allocations under MGNREGA	5255.87
State's share in CAF	112.91

In 2018, Kerala's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 112.91 crore.

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 30.825 MH**a** 

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	8.69
Not available for land cultivation	3.51
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	1.29
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.02
Culturable wasteland	1.00
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.47
Current Fallow	0.35
Net Sown	15.42

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 9.46 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.65
Moderate Dense Forest	3.45
Open Forest	3.62



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 20.40 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.02
Wide-scale Restoration	7.04
Mosaic Restoration	13.34



### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Madhya Pradesh has the potential to sequester between 548.77 to 709.22 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

0 1		
Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	0.56	
Widescale Restoration	387.98	
Mosaic Restoration	160.23 - 320.68	
Total	548.77 - 709.22	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Madhya Pradesh's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Madhya Pradesh has 17 projects that involve at least six types of interventions.



These interventions cover 7,364 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Madhya Pradesh:

- Between 2011-2017, Madhya Pradesh recorded 13,564 incidents of fires.
- Between 2011-2017, Madhya Pradesh diverted nearly 37,556.835 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 1.74 % of Madhya Pradesh's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 2 conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Madhya Pradesh in 2015. These conflicts are related to land acquisition for development (1) and tenure and resource rights (1).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

5 districts in Madhya Pradesh are fully covered and 15 districts are partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 70 percent of Madhya Pradesh's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 1,700,000 households. The potential for CFR in Madhya Pradesh is 3.77 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 957,476 crore was allocated to Madhya Pradesh under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	910.28
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	417.52
Thirteenth Finance Commission	135.18
NABARD	100.84
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	29.69
Allocations under MGNREGA	7,981.26
State's share in CAF	6353.67

In 2018, Madhya Pradesh's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 6,353.67 crore.

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 30.771 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	5.21
Not available for land cultivation	3.18
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	1.24
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.25
Culturable wasteland	0.91
Fallow land other than current fallow	1.19
Current Fallow	1.40
Net Sown	17.36

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 6.15 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.87
Moderate Dense Forest	2.07
Open Forest	2.12



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 19.23 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.11
Wide-scale Restoration	3.99
Mosaic Restoration	15.14



### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Maharashtra has the potential to sequester between 358.52 to 559.80 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)
Protection	2.75
Widescale Restoration	215.15
Mosaic Restoration	140.63 - 341.90
Total	358.52 - 559.80
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.	

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Maharashtra's protected areas.

### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Maharashtra has 22 projects that involve at least eleven types of interventions.



These interventions cover 11,749 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Maharashtra:

- Between 2011-2017, Maharashtra recorded 12,428 incidents of fires.
- Between 2011-2017, Maharashtra diverted nearly 25,520.711 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 1.74 % of Maharashtra's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 3 conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Maharashtra in . These conflicts are related to land acquisition for development (3).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

12 districts in Maharashtra are covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 39 percent of Maharashtra's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 2,708,597 households. The potential for CFR in Maharashtra is 3.63 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 800,855 crore was allocated to Maharashtra under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	1,646.76
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	541.84
Thirteenth Finance Commission	90.30
NABARD	114.48
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	41.06
Allocations under MGNREGA	5574.11
State's share in CAF	5029.50

In 2018, Maharashtra's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was 5029.50 crore INR.

### MANIPUR

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 2.23 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	1.69
Not available for land cultivation	0.03
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.001
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.006
Culturable wasteland	0.001
Fallow land other than current fallow	0
Current Fallow	0
Net Sown	0.37

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 1.74 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.09
Moderate Dense Forest	0.65
Open Forest	0.99



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 1.89 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	1.48
Wide-scale Restoration	0.19
Mosaic Restoration	0.22





#### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Manipur has the potential to sequester between 32.67 to 34.39 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)
Protection	24.34
Widescale Restoration	7.64
Mosaic Restoration	0.69 - 2.41
Total	32.67 - 34.39
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.	

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Manipur's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Manipur has 5 projects that involve at least eleven types of interventions.



These interventions cover 843 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Manipur:

- Between 2011-2017, Manipur recorded 9344 incidents of fires.
- Between the year 2000 and 2017, Manipur diverted nearly 1,425.351 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 0.08 % of Manipur's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 1 conflict between state agencies and communities was reported in Manipur in 2010. These conflicts are

related to land tenure and resource rights (1).

• Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Manipur partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 10 percent of Manipur's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 24,102 households. The potential for CFR in Manipur is 0.001 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 69,460.7 crore was allocated to Manipur under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	154.21
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	16.66
Thirteenth Finance Commission	80.98
NABARD	0.36
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	00.00
Allocations under MGNREGA	442.41
State's share in CAF	418.86

In 2018, Manipur's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 418.86 crore.

## **MEGHALAYA**

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 2.24 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	0.94
Not available for land cultivation	0.24
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	1
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	6
Culturable wasteland	1
Fallow land other than current fallow	0
Current Fallow	0
Net Sown	0.28

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 0.95 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.045
Moderate Dense Forest	0.94
Open Forest	0.73



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 1.81 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	1.22
Wide-scale Restoration	0.58
Mosaic Restoration	0.01



#### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Meghalaya has the potential to sequester between 51.14 to 51.25 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)
Protection	25.91
Widescale Restoration	25.20
Mosaic Restoration	0.03 - 0.14
Total	51.14 - 51.25
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.	

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Meghalaya's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Meghalaya has 3 projects that involve at least five types of interventions.



These interventions cover 2,050 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Meghalaya's:

• Between 2011-2017, Meghalaya recorded 9,344 incidents of fires.

- Between the year 2000 and 2017, Meghalaya diverted nearly 530.593 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 0.03 % of Meghalaya's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 4 conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Meghalaya in 2015. These conflicts are related to land acquisition for development (3) and tenure and resource rights (1).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Meghalaya partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 2 percent of Meghalaya's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 39,210 households. The potential for CFR in Meghalaya is 0.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 68346.7 crore was allocated to Meghalaya under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	168.84
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	5.2
Thirteenth Finance Commission	94.33
NABARD	1.54
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	00.00
Allocations under MGNREGA	413.56
State's share in CAF	193.51

In 2018, Meghalaya's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 193.51 crore.

### **MIZORAM**

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 2.10 MH**a** 

Land Use	Area (MHCa)
Forests	1.59
Not available for land cultivation	0.10
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.005
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.07
Culturable wasteland	0.007
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.16
Current Fallow	0.04
Net Sown	0.11

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 0.56 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.013
Moderate Dense Forest	0.59
Open Forest	1.22



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 1.38 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	1.23
Wide-scale Restoration	0.10
Mosaic Restoration	0.05





### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Mizoram has the potential to sequester between 50.47 to 50.84 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	25.19	
Widescale Restoration	25.20	
Mosaic Restoration	0.08 - 0.45	
Total	50.47 - 50.84	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Mizoram's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Mizoram has 3 projects that involve at least five types of interventions.



These interventions cover 1,070 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Mizoram:

- Between 2011-2017, Mizoram recorded 13,730 incidents of fires.
- Between the year 2000 and 2017, Mizoram diverted nearly 38,438.527 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 2 % of Mizoram's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, zero conflict between state agencies and communities was reported in Mizoram.

• Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Mizoram partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 3 percent of Mizoram's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 80,685 households. The potential for CFR in Mizoram is 0.

### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 70,332 crore was allocated to Mizoram under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover. Add table. Mention clearly that data is not available for certain categories for some years.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)	
Budgetary Allocation	253.77	
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	4.40	
Thirteenth Finance Commission	99.10	
NABARD	0.00	
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	0.00	
Allocations under MGNREGA	346.057	
State's share in CAF	120.74	

In 2018, Mizoram's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 120.74 crore.

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 1.65 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	0.86
Not available for land cultivation	0.09
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.09
Culturable wasteland	0.07
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.10
Current Fallow	0.05
Net Sown	0.38

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 0.86 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.12
Moderate Dense Forest	0.46
Open Forest	0.66



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 1.36 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	1.11
Wide-scale Restoration	0.16
Mosaic Restoration	0.09



### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Nagaland has the potential to sequester between 26.53 to 27.25 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	19.72	
Widescale Restoration	6.64	
Mosaic Restoration	0.17 - 0.89	
Total	26.53 - 27.25	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

#### 40 | 🛞 WRI INDIA

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Nagaland's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Nagaland has 5 projects that involve at least five types of interventions.



These interventions cover 51,00 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Nagaland:

- Between 2011-2017, Nagaland recorded 5908 incidents of fires.
- No data is available for forest land diversion between the year 2000 and 2017 in Nagaland.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, zero conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Nagaland.

• Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Nagaland partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 4.65 percent of Nagaland's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 159,587 households. The potential for CFR in Nagaland is 0.02 MHa.

### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 78413.4 crore was allocated to Nagaland under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	405.60
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	0.00
Thirteenth Finance Commission	87.35
NABARD	4.36
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	17.67
Allocations under MGNREGA	269.15
State's share in CAF	-

Nagaland was not made an allocation under the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystem services lost as a result of forest land diversion.

# **ODISHA**

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 15.5 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	5.81
Not available for land cultivation	2.33
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.52
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.22
Culturable wasteland	0.56
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.63
Current Fallow	0.88
Net Sown	4.49

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 6.12 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.69
Moderate Dense Forest	2.13
Open Forest	2.30



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 7.58 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.88
Wide-scale Restoration	3.50
Mosaic Restoration	3.20



### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Odisha has the potential to sequester between 169.40 to 224.05 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	23.09	
Widescale Restoration	145.95	
Mosaic Restoration	0.36 - 55.01	
Total	169.40 - 224.05	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Odisha's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Odisha has 27 projects that involve at least nine types of interventions.



These interventions cover 185504 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Odisha:

• Between 2011-2017, Odisha recorded 16,573 incidents of fires.

- Between the year 2000 and 2017, Odisha diverted nearly 39,837.501 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 0.77% of Odisha's total forest area.•
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 41 conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Odisha in 2015. These conflicts are related to compensatory afforestation (14), land acquisition for development (3) and tenure and resource rights (24).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

6 districts in Odisha are fully covered and 7 districts are partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 20 percent of Odisha's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 1,642,982 households. The potential for CFR in Odisha is 1.78 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 473983 crore INR was allocated to Odisha under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	735.57
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	883.92
Thirteenth Finance Commission	75.05
NABARD	74.25
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	373.62
Allocations under MGNREGA	0.00
State's share in CAF	9,725.19

In 2018, Odisha's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 9,725.19 crore.

# PUNJAB

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 5.03 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	0.29
Not available for land cultivation	0.55
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.005
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.008
Culturable wasteland	0.006
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.006
Current Fallow	0.005
Net Sown	4.15

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 0.30 MH

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.0008
Moderate Dense Forest	0.08
Open Forest	0.10



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 0.69 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.00
Wide-scale Restoration	0.11
Mosaic Restoration	0.58



### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Punjab has the potential to sequester between 10.65 to 20.23 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	0.03	
Widescale Restoration	4.71	
Mosaic Restoration	5.91 - 15.50	
Total	10.65 - 20.23	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Punjab's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Punjab has 4 projects that involve at least three types of interventions.



These interventions cover 7,060 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Punjab:

- Between 2011-2017, Punjab recorded 521 incidents of fires.
- Between the year 2000 and 2017, Punjab diverted

nearly 75,314.695 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 41 % of Punjab's total forest area. area.

- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 1 conflict between state agencies and communities was reported in Punjab in 2015. These conflicts are related to tenure and resource rights (1).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Punjab partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 58 percent of Punjab's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 91,850 households. The potential for CFR in Punjab is 0.07 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, 50939.8 crore INR was allocated to Punjab under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	68.67
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	103.89
Thirteenth Finance Commission	26.10
NABARD	00.00
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	00.00
Allocations under MGNREGA	310.74
State's share in CAF	1,371.58

In 2018, Punjab's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 1371.58 crore.

### RAJASTHAN

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 34.2 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	2.76
Not available for land cultivation	4.27
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	1.69
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.02
Culturable wasteland	4.00
Fallow land other than current fallow	1.85
Current Fallow	1.40
Net Sown	18.27

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 3.27 Mha

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.078
Moderate Dense Forest	0.43
Open Forest	1.21



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 17.21 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.00
Wide-scale Restoration	1.29
Mosaic Restoration	15.92





#### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Rajasthan has the potential to sequester between 342.73 to 642.57 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	0.00	
Widescale Restoration	92.02	
Mosaic Restoration	250.71 - 550.55	
Total	342.73 - 642.57	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Rajasthan's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Rajasthan has 9 projects that involve at least eight types of interventions.



These interventions cover 3,941 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Rajasthan:

• Between 2011-2017, Rajasthan recorded 714 incidents of fires.

- Between the year 2000 and 2017, Rajasthan diverted nearly 27284.092 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 1.64 % of Rajasthan's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 3 conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Andhra Pradesh in 2015. These conflicts are related to land acquisition for development (2) and tenure and resource rights (1).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

2 districts in Rajasthan are fully covered and 2 districts are partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 26 percent of Rajasthan's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 571,051 households. The potential for CFR in Rajasthan is 2.71 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, 852361.9 crore INR was allocated to Rajasthan under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	1,564.58
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	177.82
Thirteenth Finance Commission	3.68
NABARD	35.96
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	364.00
Allocations under MGNREGA	6,357.58
State's share in CAF	2,635.80

In 2018, Rajasthan's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 2,635.80 crore.

# **SIKKIM**

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 0.71 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	0.34
Not available for land cultivation	0.010
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	NA
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.004
Culturable wasteland	0.004
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.005
Current Fallow	0.007
Net Sown	0.077

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 0.58 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.10
Moderate Dense Forest	0.15
Open Forest	0.07



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 0.21 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.15
Wide-scale Restoration	0.06
Mosaic Restoration	0.00



### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Sikkim has the potential to sequester between 6.94 to 7.02 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	4.00	
Widescale Restoration	2.93	
Mosaic Restoration	0.01 - 0.09	
Total	6.94 - 7.02	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

#### 🔆 WRI INDIA

48

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Sikkim's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Sikkim has 3 projects that involve at least five types of interventions.



These interventions cover 7,060 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Sikkim:

- Between 2011-2017, Maharashtra recorded 12428 incidents of fires.
- Between the year 2000 and 2017, Sikkim diverted nearly 2,754.85 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 0.82% of Sikkim's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, zero conflict between state agencies and communities

was reported in Sikkim.

• Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Punjab partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 16 percent of Sikkim's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 46,000 households. The potential for CFR in Sikkim is 0.28 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 39919 crore was allocated to Sikkim under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	46.52
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	40.99
Thirteenth Finance Commission	61.15
NABARD	1.81
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	84.39
Allocations under MGNREGA	164.33
State's share in CAF	445.93

In 2018, Sikkim's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 445.93 crore.

# **TAMIL NADU**

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 13.01 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	2.13
Not available for land cultivation	2.68
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.11
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.25
Culturable wasteland	0.33
Fallow land other than current fallow	1.72
Current Fallow	1.12
Net Sown	4.71

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 2.28 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.36
Moderate Dense Forest	1.09
Open Forest	1.16



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 3.99 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.24
Wide-scale Restoration	0.69
Mosaic Restoration	3.06



### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Tamil Nadu has the potential to sequester between 71.35 to 97.03 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	6.31	
Widescale Restoration	35.56	
Mosaic Restoration	29.48 - 55.16	
Total	71.35 - 97.03	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Tamil Nadu's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that in Tamil Nadu has 7 projects that involve at least six types of interventions.



These interventions cover 936 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Tamil Nadu:

- Between 2011-2017, Tamil Nadu recorded 1,178 incidents of fires.
- Between the year 2000 and 2017, Tamil Nadu diverted nearly 2,144.44 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 0.08 % of Tamil Nadu's total forest area.

- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 1 conflict between state agencies and communities was reported in Tamil Nadu. These conflicts are related to tenure and resource rights (1).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Punjab partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 33 percent of Tamil Nadu's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 482,269 households. The potential for CFR in Tamil Nadu is 1.71 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 592,087.8 crore was allocated to Tamil Nadu under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	627.70
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	4.73
Thirteenth Finance Commission	-71.88
NABARD	92.29
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	297.55
Allocations under MGNREGA	4,970.49
State's share in CAF	148.08

In 2018, Tamil Nadu's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 148.08 crore.

## **TELANGANA**

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 11.48 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	2.74
Not available for land cultivation	1.51
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.30
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.11
Culturable wasteland	0.17
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.71
Current Fallow	0.96
Net Sown	4.96

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 2.69 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.15
Moderate Dense Forest	0.87
Open Forest	1.00



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 5.99 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.07
Wide-scale Restoration	1.29
Mosaic Restoration	4.64





### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Telangana has the potential to sequester between 116.70 to 156.12 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	2.06	
Widescale Restoration	69.37	
Mosaic Restoration	45.28 - 84.69	
Total	116.70 - 156.12	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Telangana's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Telangana has 4 projects that involve at least five types of interventions.



These interventions cover 524 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Telangana:

• Between 2011-2017, Telangana recorded 3,954 incidents of fires.

- Between the year 2000 and 2017, Telangana diverted nearly 28,815.3632 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 1.41 % of Telangana's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 2 conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Telangana in 2015. These conflicts are related to land acquisition for development (1) and tenure and resource rights (1).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

3 districts in Telangana are partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. No data is available on the number of joint forest management committees and the potential for CFR in Telangana.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 333,041.9 crore was allocated to Telangana under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	390.21
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	77.00
Thirteenth Finance Commission	0.00
NABARD	20.78
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	0.00
Allocations under MGNREGA	2,842.43
State's share in CAF	2,115.51

In 2018, Telangana's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 2,115.51 crore.

# **TRIPURA**

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 1.04 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forest and Tree Cover	0.63
Not available for land cultivation	0.15
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.001
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.01
Culturable wasteland	0.003
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.002
Current Fallow	0.002
Net Sown	0.26

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 0.62 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.06
Moderate Dense Forest	0.52
Open Forest	0.18



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 0.54 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.38
Wide-scale Restoration	0.12
Mosaic Restoration	0.04



#### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Tripura has the potential to sequester between 13.51 to 13.79 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)	
Protection	8.99	
Widescale Restoration	4.42	
Mosaic Restoration	0.10 - 0.38	
Total	13.51 - 13.79	
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.		

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Tripura's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Tripura has 3 projects that involve at least five types of interventions.



These interventions cover 21,956 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Tripura:

- Between 2011-2017, Tripura recorded 4,868 incidents of fires.
- Between the year 2000 and 2017, Tripura diverted nearly 2,312.786 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 0.3 % of Tripura's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, zero conflict between state agencies and communities was reported in Tripura.

• Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Tripura partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 38 percent of Tripura's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 79,445 households. The potential for CFR in Tripura is 0.49 MHa.

### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 318,053.5 crore was allocated to Tripura under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	189.98
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	19.28
Thirteenth Finance Commission	59.78
NABARD	0.24
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	236.61
Allocations under MGNREGA	2,674.65
State's share in CAF	257.64

In 2018, Tripura's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 257.64 crore.

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 24.09 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	1.66
Not available for land cultivation	3.5
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.07
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.33
Culturable wasteland	0.41
Fallow land other than current fallow	1.13
Current Fallow	0.06
Net Sown	16.54

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 1.65 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.26
Moderate Dense Forest	0.41
Open Forest	0.79



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 2.87 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.05
Wide-scale Restoration	0.63
Mosaic Restoration	2.19





#### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Uttar Pradesh has the potential to sequester between 61.49 to 93.27 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)
Protection	1.14
Widescale Restoration	37.59
Mosaic Restoration	22.76 - 54.54
Total	61.49 - 93.27
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.	

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Uttar Pradesh's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Uttar Pradesh has 6 projects that involve at least six types of interventions.



These interventions cover 6,002 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Uttar Pradesh:

• Between 2011-2017, Uttar Pradesh recorded 3204 incidents of fires.

- Between the year 2000 and 2017, Uttar Pradesh diverted nearly 50,052.855 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 3.4 % of Uttar Pradesh's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 3 conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Uttar Pradesh in 2015. These conflicts are related to land acquisition for development (1) and tenure and resource rights (2).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Uttar Pradesh partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 11 percent of Uttar Pradesh's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 706,050 households. The potential for CFR in Uttar Pradesh is 0.81 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 606374.7 crore was allocated to Uttar Pradesh under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR crore)
Budgetary Allocation	168.09
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	150.39
Thirteenth Finance Commission	-8.88
NABARD	11.51
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	326.63
Allocations under MGNREGA	5,416.00
State's share in CAF	2,557.18

In 2018, Uttar Pradesh's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 2,557.17 crore.

## UTTARAKHAND

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total Geographic Area: 5.34 MHa

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	3.8
Not available for land cultivation	0.45
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.19
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.39
Culturable wasteland	0.32
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.09
Current Fallow	0.06
Net Sown	0.70

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 3.18 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.49
Moderate Dense Forest	1.29
Open Forest	0.64



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Total Area Available for Restoration: 2.25 MHa

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.80
Wide-scale Restoration	0.80
Mosaic Restoration	0.65





### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

Uttarakhand has the potential to sequester between 64.17 to 74.91 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)
Protection	23.30
Widescale Restoration	34.86
Mosaic Restoration	6.01 - 16.75
Total	64.17 to 74.91
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.	

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Uttarakhand's protected areas.

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in Uttarakhand's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that Uttarakhand has 7 projects that involve at least seven types of interventions.



These interventions cover 680 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in Uttarakhand:

- Between 2011-2017, Uttarakhand recorded 3932 incidents of fires.
- Between the year 2000 and 2017, Uttarakhand diverted nearly 50551.621 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 2.08 % of Uttarakhand's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 6 conflicts between state agencies and communities were reported in Uttarakhand in 2015. These conflicts are related to land acquisition for development (1) and tenure and resource rights (5).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in Uttarakhand partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 16 percent of Uttarakhand's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 629,000 households. The potential for CFR is Uttarakhand is 1.15 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, INR 165,266.9 crore crore was allocated to Uttarakhand under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (crore INR)
Budgetary Allocation	576.15
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	258.28
Thirteenth Finance Commission	33.15
NABARD	10.10
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	153.86
Allocations under MGNREGA	621.14
State's share in CAF	3,801.17

In 2018, Uttarakhand's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 3,801.17 crore.

## **WEST BENGAL**

#### **GEOGRAPHIC AREA AND LAND USE**

Total geographic area: 8.87 MH**a** 

Land Use	Area (MHa)
Forests	1.17
Not available for land cultivation	1.85
Permanent pastures and other grazing lands	0.002
Land under misc. tree crops and groves	0.049
Culturable wasteland	0.018
Fallow land other than current fallow	0.12
Current Fallow	0.349
Net Sown	5.234

#### **FOREST COVER**

Recorded Forest Area: 1.18 MHa

Forest Type	Area (MHa)
Very Dense Forest	0.29
Moderate Dense Forest	0.41
Open Forest	0.97



#### LANDSCAPE RESTORATION POTENTIAL

Intervention	Area (MHa)
Protection	0.13
Wide-scale Restoration	0.31
Mosaic Restoration	0.56





#### **CARBON SEQUESTRATION POTENTIAL**

West Bengal has the potential to sequester between 20.51 to 25.24 million tons (MT) of additional above ground carbon through improvement of tree cover. This includes:

Strategy	Carbon Sequestration Potential (MT of Carbon)
Protection	2.37
Widescale Restoration	13.16
Mosaic Restoration	4.98 - 9.71
Total	20.51 - 25.24
* the lower limit is based on estimates of 20% tree cover in cultivated areas, the upper limit assumes 40% tree cover in cultivated areas.	

Notably the above does not include carbon sequestration potential in West Bengal's protected areas.

#### PAST AND ON-GOING INITIATIVES

The study on past and on-going initiatives found that West Bengal has 4 projects that involve at least six types of interventions.



These interventions cover 1,377 hectares and have been implemented by government agencies, private sector as well civil society organisations.

#### RISKS TO IMPROVEMENT IN FOREST AND TREE COVER



There are four major risks that can adversely impact improvements in forest and tree cover in West Bengal:

• Between 2011-2017, West Bengal recorded 1192 incidents of fires.

- Between the year 2000 and 2017, West Bengaldiverted nearly 1,509.945 hectares of forest land. This is nearly 0.08 % of West Bengal's total forest area.
- According to the Land Conflict Watch, 1 conflict between state agencies and communities was reported in West Bengal in 2015. These conflicts are related to land acquisition for development (1).
- Biotic pressure including open grazing and collection of fuel-wood.

#### **TENURE AND RESOURCE RIGHTS**

No data available for the number of districts in West Bengal partially covered under the Panchayat (Extension to Scheduled Areas) Act of 1996. Nearly 54 percent of West Bengal's forests are covered by joint forest management committees, covering 505,149 households. The potential for CFR in West Bengal is 0.53 MHa.

#### **FINANCE FLOWS**

Between 2011-16, 791,204.1 crore INR was allocated to West Bengal under different programs and schemes, for improvements in forest and tree cover.

Programme	Amount (INR Crore)
Budgetary Allocation	134.94
Compensatory Afforestation Fund (CAF)	4.84
Thirteenth Finance Commission	21.75
NABARD	21.05
Bilateral and Multilateral funders	86.31
Allocations under MGNREGA	7,643.14
State's share in CAF	277.33

In 2018, West Bengal's share of the Compensatory Afforestation Fund, which was created to compensate the ecosystems services lost as a result of forest land diversion, was INR 277.33 crore.

#### REFERENCES

Agarwal, Shruti, and Ajay Kumar Saxena. 2018. "People's Forests: Is Community forest resource governance the future of India's Jungles?" Center for Science and Environment. New Delhi.

Ambika, A.K., Brian Wardlow, and Vimal Mishra. 2016. "Remotely Sensed High Resolution Irrigated Area Mapping in India for 2000 to 2015." Scientific Data 3: 160118 118. https://www. nature.com/articles/sdata2016118. Accessed on January 20, 2017.

Ding, Helen, Peter G. Viet, Allen Blackman, Erin Gray, Katie Reytar, Juan Carlos Altamirano, and Benjamin Hodgdon. 2016. Climate Benefits, Tenure Costs—The Economic Case for Securing Indigenous Land Rights in the Amazon. Washington, DC: World Resources Institute.

FSI (Forest Survey of India). 2013. India State of Forest Report 2013. Dehradun, India: FSI.

FSI. 2015. India State of Forests Report 2015. Dehradun, India: FSI.

FSI. 2017. India State of Forest Report 2017. Dehradun, India: FSI.

Gol (Government of India). 2011. Census Data 2011. Office of the Registrar General and Census Commissioner, India. Available at worldpop.org. Accessed August 14, 2017.

Land Conflict Watch. 2018. "Mapping Land Conflicts in India" https://www. landconflictwatch.org/. Accessed June 2, 2018.

MoEFCC (Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change). 2011. National Workshop on JFM. Dehradun, India: Forest Research Institute.

MoEFCC. 2016. "Compensatory Afforestation Bill Passed by Rajya Sabha." http://pib.nic.in/ newsite/mbErel.aspx?relid=147937. Accessed July, 28, 2018.

MoEFCC. 2017. "Forest Landscape Restoration Programmes in India." Presented at the Forests and Beyond: Regional Consultation on Forest Landscape Restoration (FLR)-South Asia, New Delhi, India: International Union for the Conservation of Nature.

MoEFCC. 2018. "Integrated e-Governance Portal for Automation, Streamlining, and Effective Management of processes related to Plantation and other Forestry Work." http://egreenwatch. nic.in/. Accessed June 20, 2018. br/SiteBNDES/bndes/bndes\_en/Institucional/ The\_BNDES\_in\_Numbers/Annual\_Report/ MoRD (Ministry of Rural Development). 2017. "Mahatma Gandhi National Rural Employment Guarantee Scheme". New Delhi, Government of India.

Parliament, Lok Sabha. 2014. "Incidents of forest fires in forest areas". Monsoon Session (Unstarred Question Number 227). New Delhi.

Parliament, Lok Sabha. 2016. "Incidents of forest fires in forest areas". Budget Session (Unstarred Question Number 379). New Delhi.

Parliament,Rodgers, W.A., and H.S. Panwar. 1988. Planning a Wildlife Protected Area Network in India. Dehradun, India: Wildlife Institute of India.

Roy, P.S., M.D. Behera, M.S.R. Murthy, A. Roy, S. Singh, S.P.S. Kushwaha, et al. 2015. "New Vegetation Type Map of India Prepared Using Satellite Remote Sensing: Comparison with Global Vegetation Maps and Utilities." International Journal of Applied Earth Observations and Geoinformation 39: 142–159.

Saxena, N.C. 2015. "Farm and Agroforestry in India—Policy and Legal Issues." Planning Commission. http://planningcommission.nic.in/ reports/articles/ncsxna/index.php?repts=agro. htm. Accessed May 8, 2018.

Shah, Dilip. 2005. "Sustainable Tribal Development Model Case of WADI". Department of Economic Analysis and Research. National Bank of Agriculture and Rural Development. Mumbai.

UNEP-WCMC (United Nations Environment Programme-World Conservation Monitoring Centre. 2018. Protected Area Profile for India from the World Database of Protected Areas. UNEP-WCMC.

WCS (Wildlife Conservation Society) and CIESIN (Center for International Earth Science Information). 2005. Global Human Footprint (Geographic), V2 (1995–2004). Palisades, NY: Columbia University.

Zomer, Robert J., Henry Neufeldt, Jianchu Xu, Antje Ahrends, Deborah Bossio, Antonio Trabucco, Meine van Noordwijk, and Mingcheng Wang. 2016. Global Tree Cover and BiomassCarbon on Agricultural Land: The Contribution of Agroforestry to Global and National Carbon Budgets. Scientific Report 6 29987. https://www.nature.com/articles/ srep29987. Accessed August 23, 2017.

#### ABOUT WRI INDIA

WRI India is a research organization with experts and staff who work closely with leaders to turn big ideas into action to sustain a healthy environment - the foundation of economic opportunity and human well-being. We envision an equitable and prosperous planet driven by wise management of natural resources. We aspire to create a world where actions of governments, businesses, and communities combine to elliminate poverty and sustain the natural environment for all people.

#### **Our Challenge**

Natural resources are at the foundation of economic opportunity and human well-being. But today, we are depleting Earth's resources at rates that are not sustainable, endangering economies and people's lives. People depend on clean water, fertile land, healthy forests, and a stable climate. Livable cities and clean energy are essential for a sustainable planet. We must address these urgent, global challenges this decade.

#### **Our Vision**

We envision an equitable and prosperous planet driven by the wise management of natural resources. We aspire to create a world where the actions of government, business, and communities combine to eliminate poverty and sustain the natural environment for all people.

#### **Our Approach**

#### COUNT IT

We start with data. We conduct independent research and draw on the latest technology to develop new insights and recommendations. Our rigorous analysis identifies risks, unveils opportunities, and informs smart strategies. We focus our efforts on influential and emerging economies where the future of sustainability will be determined.

#### CHANGE IT

We use our research to influence government policies, business strategies, and civil society action. We test projects with communities, companies, and government agencies to build a strong evidence base. Then, we work with partners to deliver change on the ground that alleviates poverty and strengthens society. We hold ourselves accountable to ensure our outcomes will be bold and enduring.

#### SCALE IT

We don't think small. Once tested, we work with partners to adopt and expand our efforts regionally and globally. We engage with decision-makers to carry out our ideas and elevate our impact. We measure success through government and business actions that improve people's lives and sustain a healthy environment.





WRI INDIA